Democratic Service
Complete Agenda o e

CAERNARFON
Gwynedd
CYNGOR LL55 1SH

GWYNEDD

Meeting

PLANNING COMMITTEE

Date and Time

1.00 pm, MONDAY, 29TH SEPTEMBER, 2025

*NOTE*
This meeting will be webcast

https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en GB/portal/home

Location

Hybrid - Siambr Dafydd Orwig, Council Offices, Caernarfon LL55 1SH
and Virtually via Zoom

Contact Point

Lowri Haf Evans
01286 679 878

lowrihafevans@gwynedd.llyw.cymru

(DISTRIBUTED 19/09/25)

www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru



http://www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/
https://gwynedd.public-i.tv/core/l/en_GB/portal/home

PLANNING COMMITTEE

MEMBERSHIP (15)

Plaid Cymru (9)

Councillors
Elwyn Edwards Delyth Lloyd Griffiths
Elin Hywel Gareth Tudor Jones
Olaf Cai Larsen Edgar Wyn Owen
Gareth A Roberts Huw Rowlands
John Pughe Berwyn Parry Jones

Independent (5)

Councillors
Louise Hughes Anne Lloyd-Jones
John Pughe Roberts Gruffydd Williams

Lib/Lab (1)

Councillor Gareth Coj Parry



PROCEDURE FOR SPEAKING ON PLANNING APPLICATIONS IN
THE PLANNING COMMITTEE

The Council has decided that third parties have the right to speak on planning applications at
the Planning Committee. This leaflet outlines the normal operational arrangements for
speaking at the committee.

1. | Report of the Planning Service on the planning application
including a recommendation.

2. | If an application has been received from a 3™ party to speak the
Chairman will invite the speaker to come forwards.

3. | Objector or a representative of the objectors to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

4. | Applicant or a representative of the applicant(s) to address the | 3 minutes
committee.

5. | Local Member(s) to address the committee 10 minutes

6. | Committee Chairman to ask for a proposer and seconder for the
planning application.

7. | The committee to discuss the planning application




5.1

5.2

AGENDA

APOLOGIES
To accept any apologies for absence.

DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL
MATTERS

To receive any declaration of personal interest and to note protocol matters.
URGENT ITEMS

To note any items that are a matter of urgency in the view of the Chairman
for consideration.

MINUTES 5-13

The Chairman shall propose that the minutes of the previous meeting of this
committee, held on the 8" of September 2025, be signed as a true record.

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

To submit the report of the Head of Environment Department.

APPLICATION NO C25/0503/14/DT STRADE, 65 CAE GWYN, 14-26
CAERNARFON, GWYNEDD, LL55 1LL

Demolition of Existing Rear Conservatory and Proposed Replacement
Extension

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor loan Thomas

Link to relevant background documents

APPLICATION NO C25/0202/40/LL LAND AT Y FFOR, PWLLHELI, 27-52
LL53 6UT

Change of Use Planning Application to site 12 Holiday Lodges on land at Y
Ffor, Pwillheli.

LOCAL MEMBER: Councillor Richard Glyn Roberts

Link to relevant background documents



https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36443&language=en
https://amg.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/planning/index.html?fa=getApplication&id=36173&language=en

Agenda Item 4.

PLANNING COMMITTEE 8 September 2025

Present:

Chair: Councillor Elwyn Edwards,
Vice-chair: Councillor Huw Rowlands

Councillors: Delyth Lloyd Griffiths, Elin Hywel, Berwyn Parry Jones, Gareth T Jones, Anne Lloyd
Jones, Gareth Coj Parry, John Pughe Roberts and Gruffydd Williams.

Others invited — Local Member: Councillor Gareth Williams.

Officers: Iwan Evans (Head of Legal Services — Monitoring Officer), Gareth Jones (Assistant Head
of Planning and Environment), Gwawr Hughes (Planning Manager), Elen Morris (Planning
Professional Trainee), and Lowri Haf Evans (Democracy Services Officer).

Observing: Dafydd Jones (Solicitor) and Berwyn Owen Evans (Planning Professional Trainee).

1. APOLOGIES

Apologies were received from Councillor Louise Hughes, Councillor Cai Larsen and
Councillor Edgar Owen.

2. DECLARATION OF PERSONAL INTEREST AND PROTOCOL MATTERS

a) The following members declared that they were local members in relation to the items noted:
e Councillor Gareth Williams, (who was not a member of this Planning Committee), in
item 5.1 (C25/0361/30/LL) on the agenda.
e Councillor Gareth Tudor Jones, (who was a Member of this Planning Committee), in
item 5.3 (C24/0960/46/LL) on the agenda.

3. URGENT ITEMS

As a matter of order, it was reported that since the Chair was joining the meeting virtually,
the Monitoring Officer would be announcing the results of the voting on the applications.

4. MINUTES

The Chair accepted the minutes of the previous meeting of this committee held on 14 July
2025 as a true record.

5. PLANNING APPLICATIONS
The Committee considered the following applications for development. Details of the

applications were expanded upon, and questions were answered in relation to the plans and
policy aspects.

Page 5



5.1 APPLICATION NUMBER C25/0361/30/LL
Ael y Bryn, Rhiw, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 8AG

Full application to demolish the existing house (C3) and garage and erect a new three-
bedroom house (C3) in its place.

Attention was drawn to the late observations form.

At the 14 July, 2025 meeting, the Committee's decision was to conduct a site visit.
Some of the Committee Members visited the site on 5 September 2025.

a) The Senior Planning Officer highlighted that this was a full application to demolish an existing
two-storey house and erect a new three-bedroom, two-storey house on the same footprint
in its place. In addition, it was intended to maintain external alterations, including the removal
of the existing single-storey garage and creation of parking spaces.

It was noted that the applicant had confirmed that the property would be a social house with
Cyngor Gwynedd's Housing Options Team leading the process of allocating the property in
conjunction with Grwp Cynefin to users on the waiting list. It was reiterated that it would be
let as an intermediate rental property, the priority would be to look at this tenure initially, and
if so, advertise it through Tai Teg.

It was explained that the site was located outside any current development boundary and
was therefore in open countryside within the designations of the LIyn and Enlli Area of
Outstanding Natural Beauty and the Llyn and Enlli Landscape of Outstanding Historic
Interest. Adjacent to the site there are two separate residential dwellings and an unclassified
public road running past the site. It was noted that the current building was in a fragile
condition and a security fence protected the site.

It was noted that revised plans had been submitted, proposing design changes which
included more traditional windows, a change in the colour of the cladding panels and the
provision of a stone wall to the top of the car park bay to match local elevations.

It was considered that the proposal complied with planning guidelines and policies. The
officers' recommendation was to approve the application with conditions listed in the report.

b)  Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following comments: -

e That Ael y Bryn was a traditional cottage which was part of a wider cluster of
traditional cottages on Mynydd y Rhiw that lie in the heart of the LIyn AONB.

e It was part of the LIyn Heritage Coast and abutted the Pen Llyn a'r Sarnau SAC.
These were cottages that should be protected from this type of development.

e The proposed application was contrary to the following policies: AMG1 Applications
that negatively impact views in and out of the AONB are refused; AMG3; AMG4;
PS19 The Councils will manage developments in order to conserve and, where
relevant, enhance the natural environment, the countryside and coastline of the plan
area, and proposals that will have a substantial detrimental impact on these will be
refused.

e The new development was also contrary to the LIyjn AONB Dark Skies.

Page 6



e That Ael y Bryn had been left to Tai Eryri / Cynefin in the will of the former owner on
condition that a young local family settled in it — this had happened twelve years ago
and the situation had caused local frustration.

e The feeling locally was that Cynefin had deprived a local family from having a home,
and with the property being empty for over a decade, the structural work had
deteriorated.

e Following a presentation from Cynefin explaining the option to demolish, the rationale
for that was highlighted stating that the property was required to achieve an energy
efficiency grade A rating — to achieve that, demolition and rebuilding would be the
only option to secure the required grant.

o Despite accepting the rationale, the new house must be similar to the original
property and be in keeping in terms of character — insufficient effort had been made
with the proposed application to ensure this.

e According to the observations of the AONB Officer, it was noted that the traditional
building contributed to the AONB character and that he suggested a condition, should
the property be demolished, to ensure that windows that were traditional in size were
used to suit and restrict floodlights. However, these conditions had not been included
in the report — therefore, why ask for observations? It was considered that the
committee had a duty to consider the AONB Officer's observations and conditions.

e That there was too much plastic cladding on the new house design — this was not in
keeping — need more use of natural stone.

o He was not asking the Committee to refuse the application as this would deprive a
grant to renovate the cottage which would consequently remain empty, but
improvements had to be made to the application that were in keeping with the area
and to retain the character of Ael y Bryn.

c) It was proposed and seconded that the application be approved
ch)  During the ensuing discussion, the following comments were noted by Members:

An effort had been made to include more traditional windows.

There were insufficient modifications to the revised plans submitted.

That the plan was too modern — bordering on the destruction of this part of the AONB.

That this was a cluster of traditional houses — a plan and design that would suit the

area was needed.

That there was too much cladding in the design.

¢ The committee was urged to refuse the application due to the negative impact of the
design on the area or to defer and seek a more traditional design rather than what
was before them.

e That these cottages were part of Pen Llyn's heritage. There was a responsibility to
preserve the area's history.

e The design was not in keeping — it was completely different to the original house.
There was concern that this may set a precedent.

e It was accepted that there was a need for modernisation and to reach a certain
standard, but the design was unsightly.

¢ The setting was prominent with spectacular views — a request to modify the front

elevation of the design.

In response to the comments, the Assistant Head of Environment noted that adaptations to
the house were the main considerations of the application, but what already existed needed
to be looked at — that there was more glazing on the existing property than on the new

Page 7



design. He added that the new house would be 95m2 which was far from being a mansion
and the AONB had not objected to the application and the comments had been considered.

RESOLVED: To delegate powers to the Senior Planning Manager to approve the
application subject to the following conditions:

1. Time.

2. Compliance with plans.

3. Agree on materials, including roof slates.

4, Ecological matters, including maintaining the development in accordance
with the improvements as noted in the Green Infrastructure Statement.

5. Agree on a Construction Management Plan.

6. Landscaping.

7. Highways Matters.

8. Drainage matters.

9. Condition to manage noise associated with the heat pump.

5.2 APPLICATION NUMBER C24/1124/34/AC Cefn Graianog, Llanllyfni, Caernarfon

Application under Section 73 to amend condition 1 of planning permission reference
C20/1063/22/AC (Proposed eastern extension for sand and gravel extraction and
progressive restoration) to allow a four-year extension for the completion of minerals
operations and restoration.

a) The Planning Manager highlighted that it was an application for a four-year extension to
complete mineral operations and restoration works at Cefn Graianog. It was explained that
the application site was on the eastern flank of the main extraction area, approximately 530m
from the LIyn AONB to the west and Eryri National Park approximately 1,500m to the south-
east. It was reiterated that the site contained previously restored land, but the land was
revisited to rework minerals that had previously been considered uneconomic, but also to
enable the same extraction scheme to access further deposits, by extending eastwards.

It was noted that the working methods would be the same as those currently used in the
guarry and would use the same extractors, conveyors and other mobile plant as the existing.

In terms of the principle of development, continuation of sand and gravel mining at the site
would ensure that the Council meets its allocation obligations in the Regional Technical
Statement, to supply minerals for the North Wales sub-region and maintain a seven-year
land bank of sand and gravel. It was highlighted that there were only a few permitted sand
and gravel reserves available in North West Wales and this proposal would ensure a vital
supply of sand and gravel to the local construction economy; the principle of the development
was acceptable and in line with the requirements of the LDP's policies MWYN 2, MWYN 3
and Strategic Policy PS 22.

In the context of visual amenities and the landscape, it was reported that the application did
not include any extension or physical modifications to the working area that had already
been approved. It was undoubtedly considered that the nature of the proposal to extend the
lifespan of the operations would extend the visual impacts in the medium term, but given its
overall context in established mineral works, it would not result in any major levels of visual
effects. Although the boundary of the LIyn AONB is close to the site, the AONB Unit had

Page 8



b)

confirmed that there were no concerns about the impact on the AONB given that this was
only a request for a limited time extension. The Minerals Planning Authority considered that
the proposal complied with the requirements of the LDP's policies PCYFF 3, PCYFF 4 and
MWYN 9.

In considering residential amenities, it was noted that no sensitive properties were located
within a 100m buffer zone of the development, and it would be subject to the same working
conditions as the current conditions, including noise management, dust control and working
hours. It was considered that the loading of the hopper and conveyor would be the most
intrusive source of noise on the surface of the works as the plant machinery operated in an
elevated position in relation to the surrounding ground level. Subject to appropriate
conditions to control the effects of noise and dust and working hours, it was considered that
the proposal would not have an adverse effect on the amenities of the area and therefore
complied with policies PCYFF 2, MWYN 3 and MWYN 5 in the LDP.

The proposal did not include any change to traffic movements and haulage to and from the
site and the officer highlighted the updated biodiversity assessment which was supportive of
the request to extend the time. All existing habitats at the site had been considered and
whether there had been any change to these habitats since the previous ecological surveys
were carried out. It was recommended that the requirements to implement the reasonable
avoidance measures to protect badgers and reptiles during any field boundary clearance or
soil stripping works were maintained. Mitigation measures for reptiles required having a
qualified ecologist present when removing stone walls before undertaking any soil stripping
and/or mineral extraction work. Any reptiles found by the ecologist would be immediately
captured and relocated to suitable reception sites outside the planned extraction area, but
in the area of land under the applicant's control; the development was acceptable with the
appropriate conditions and mitigation measures and was in line with Strategic Policy PS 19
and Policies AMG 3, AMG 5, MWYN 3 and MWYN 9 of the LDP.

In the context of Hydrology, it was clarified that mitigation measures for the protection of
watercourses, streams and wetlands had already been submitted and assessed as required
under condition 36 of the parent company permission (C16/0816/34/MW). It was considered
that the proposed development would have no adverse effect on hydrological features and
flood risk and would comply with the requirements of the LDP's Strategic Policy PS 19 and
policies AMG 3, AMG 5, PCYFF 2, PCYFF 3, PCYFF 6 and MWYN 3.

The officers considered the proposed development to be consistent with all relevant planning
policies and considerations and recommended that the application be approved with
conditions.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

RESOLVED: To delegate the right to the Head of Environment Department to approve
the application, subject to conditions.

1. Extraction of minerals shall cease by 31 December 2028 by which time all plant
and machinery shall have been removed from the site; restoration work shall be
completed by 31 December 2039.

2. Restriction of permitted development rights, buildings, structures, erections,
private roads, floodlighting and fences.

3. Mitigation measures for potential impacts on wells north of the extraction area.

4. Mitigation measures for local biodiversity, badgers, breeding birds and reptiles.

Page 9



5.3

5. Permitted activities and Compliance with Submitted Details/Plans.

6. Hours of Working.

7. Safeguarding public rights of way.

8. Soil handling and husbandry.

9. Drainage, measures to prevent pollution of local watercourses.

10. Restore to mixed agricultural use and nature conservation.

11. Reinstatement of field boundaries.

12. Micro-adjust restoration levels to ensure surface water flow into the wetland
northward of the application area.

13. Archaeological mitigation and recording.

14. Aftercare measures for agricultural uses and biodiversity management.

15. Dust controls and noise limitations the same as existing but also, plant
machinery at the working face to be fitted with white noise alarms.

APPLICATION NUMBER C24/0960/46/LL Land West of Ysgol Gynradd Tudweiliog,
Tudweiliog, Pwllheli, Gwynedd

Full application to change the land use to create a new cemetery for the village of
Tudweiliog and the surrounding area along with works to create an access and parking site
and landscaping.

Attention was drawn to the late observations form which confirmed that the Transportation
Unit had no objection to the application.

The Planning Manager explained that this was a full application from Tudweiliog
Community Council to change the use of existing agricultural land to create a new public
cemetery to contain 393 graves for the village of Tudweiliog and the surrounding area.
The proposed development would involve the creation of a new vehicular entrance, the
creation of an access walkway, a car park and landscaping works and to erect an earthen
‘clawdd'.

It was highlighted that the site was located on the outskirts of the village of Tudweiliog and
outside the current development boundary and the land was currently open agricultural
land surrounded by 'cloddiau’ and hedges. It was noted that the site and the wider area
were within the LIyn and Enlli Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest and the West Llyn
Special Landscape Area.

In the context of access, it was noted that the access road from the adjacent highway was
also used for access to neighbouring residential houses, a public house and Ysgol Gynradd
Tudweiliog. It was reiterated that the school had a separate car park with dedicated
entrances in and out of the unclassified road. It was noted that the access road also
included a public footpath designation that runs parallel to the southern boundary of the
site.

It was explained that the application was being submitted to the Planning Committee
because of the applicant's relationship to a current member of the Planning Service staff.

It was considered that the proposal as submitted was acceptable on the basis that
e policy ISA 2 supported developments for public facilities as long as the proposal meets
certain specific criteria.

Page 10



b)

o When new facilities are proposed outside a development boundary, it must be
demonstrated that the proposed location is the best available location and is accessible
to the community.

Reference was made to confirmation received from the Community Council detailing the
current situation of the village cemetery stating that only two possible new graves could be
provided there and that this was the only site available to meet the need. While there was
concern about the location of the proposal, it was accepted that the village's current
situation of failing to provide a vital facility for the future was a complex issue and an
obvious solution was needed. Other suitable lands were not available in or directly adjacent
to the development boundary and therefore another site had to be considered. Having
considered all relevant information and evidence, it was considered that there was
justification for the creation of a new cemetery at this location and therefore the
considerations of the location met the relevant requirements of policy ISA 2.

The officers considered the application to be consistent with all relevant policies and
planning considerations and recommended that the application be approved with
conditions.

Taking advantage of the right to speak, the Local Member made the following observations.
e That he supported the application.

e The existing cemetery was almost full and there was no suitable land in front of the
existing cemetery. Therefore, it was necessary to search urgently for a new site for a
cemetery.

That the Community Council has been very busy looking for suitable land.

He thanked the landowner for the land — the location was suitable, nice, quiet and open.
That there was adequate parking space. The site was accessible.

There was no impact on the public footpath and no risk of flooding.

This addressed the requirements of policy ISA 2.

The primary school, which was located nearby, was supportive of the application.

He suggested that the transport management plan/parking condition, should refer to
the management of the road to the cemetery and the road past the school.

During his address, he expressed that he was a Governor at Ysgol Gynradd Tudweiliog.
The Monitoring Officer noted that the Member should have declared this at the start of the
meeting.

In response to the comments about the Transport/Parking Management Plan condition, the
Assistant Head of Environment stated that the condition in its full form would address wider
parking arrangements.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application
RESOLVED: To approve the application subject to the following conditions:

. Time.

. Compliance with plans.

. Highway issues/agree on a Transport/Parking Management Plan.
. Biodiversity Matters.

. Landscaping.

. Drainage matters.

OO, WNPE

Page 11



5.4

b)

c)

7. Protection of the public footpath.

8. Construction management plan.

9. Natural Resources Wales condition.
10. Completion of boundary treatments.

Application No. C25/0370/11/DT Treetops, 3, Bryn Eithinog, Bangor, Gwynedd

To erect a two-storey side extension together with alterations

The Professional Trainee highlighted that it was an application for the demolition of a
single-storey flat roof extension on the front and side of the property along with the erection
of a two-storey pitch-roof extension on the side of the property and a single-storey
extension in the form of a 'lean to' at the front. It was explained that the extension would
provide two additional bedrooms, a utility and a new dressing room, along with 3 parking
spaces to the front of the property.

It was noted that the location of the two-storey house was within an estate of various
houses within the development boundary of the City of Bangor and the application was
before the Planning Committee at the request of the Local Member.

In the context of the principle of development, while acknowledging that the extension was
substantial, its location on the property and its design were not considered to make it
appear as an alien feature in the vicinity. The extension did not extend out to the rear any
further than the rear of the existing property and extended to the side approximately 1.7m
further than the current extension. The height of the extension would match the height of
the existing property, with the single storey section at the front consisting of a 'lean to' roof.

In the context of visual, general and residential amenities, although the extension would
mean that it would be approximately 1m away from the boundary with the property next
door, it was not considered that the proposal would have an adverse effect on neighbours'
amenities. The property next door, facing the extension, did not contain any openings, and
the openings on the extension only included those of the ground floor. The extension did
not extend out any further towards the rear boundary of the site than the existing property,
but it was acknowledged that it was intended to provide two additional first floor windows
for a dressing room and an en-suite. It was considered reasonable to impose a planning
condition to ensure that these windows contained opaque glass. The proposal was not
considered to involve overdevelopment of the site and would not have an adverse impact
on the amenities of the surrounding residents.

Based on the Transport Unit's comments, a plan had been provided confirming the
intention to provide three parking spaces in front of the house.

The officers considered the application to be consistent with all relevant policies and
planning considerations and recommended that the application be approved with
conditions.

The Local Member had highlighted in an email that she had called in the application as it
appeared to be a huge extension but had not received any comments/concerns from local
residents. As a result, she had no further comments to submit.

It was proposed and seconded to approve the application.

Page 12



RESOLVED: To approve the application with conditions.

Five years to commence the work.

In accordance with plans.

Slates and finish to match.

Install opaque glass in the rear windows on the first floor.
Biodiversity Enhancements.

Welsh Water condition.

ouhkwnE

Information note: Welsh Water, Biodiversity

The meeting commenced at 13:00 and concluded at 13:50

CHAIR

Page 13



Agenda Iltem 5.1

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Number: 1

Application C25/0503/14/DT
Number:

Date Registered: 08/07/25

Application Householder

Type:

Community: Caernarfon

Ward: Menai

Proposal: To demolish an existing sun-room and construct a new

extension to the rear

L ocation: Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1LL

Summary of the

Recommendation 14 AppROVE WITH CONDITIONS

Page 14


https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=31500

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

1 Description:

1.1 An application to demolish an existing sun-room and construct a one-storey extension in its place
at the rear of the property. The proposed rear extension will have a flat roof and measure
approximately 8.4m x 4.8m. There is an intention to finish the extension with timber cladding.
High windows will be installed on the side appearances of the extension and bifold doors and
large windows in terms of size will be installed on the rear appearance of the property. There is
also an intention to finish the existing property with white render.

1.2 The property is a detached house in an estate of other detached houses and within the Caernarfon
development boundary as noted in the LDP. The property is not located within any special land
designations.

1.3 The application has been presented to the Planning Committee as the applicant is an Elected
Member of the Council.

2. Relevant Policies:

2.1 Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and Planning Policy Wales
emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development Plan, unless
material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include National Planning
Policy and the Local Development Plan.

2.2 The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This
report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future
generations to meet their own needs.

2.3 Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PS1: The Welsh Language and Culture
PCYFF 2: Development criteria
PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping
PS19: Conserving and where appropriate enhancing the natural environment

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable
Communities 2019.

2.4 National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)
Technical Advice Note 12: Design

3. Relevant Planning History:

3.1 Not relevant

4 Consultations

Community Council: Support the application.

Page 15



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

Welsh Water: Observations and guidelines for the applicant in

their letter dated 06/08/2025

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on the site and nearby

5.

residents were notified. The advertising period
ended, and no correspondence was received
regarding the development.

Assessment of the material planning considerations:

The principle of the development

5.1

5.2

Visual,

5.3

54

55

Generally, policies PCYFF 2 and PCYFF 3 of the Joint Local Development Plan approve
proposals, as long as they do not have a detrimental impact on the health, safety or the amenities
of the occupiers of local properties or on the area in general. In addition, proposals are required
to:

e Contribute to, and improve, the character and appearance of the site,

e Respect the site and its surroundings in terms of its position in the local land-
scape.

e Use materials appropriately.

It is seen that this site is within the development boundary in a residential area where there are
many residential developments and are diverse in terms of their size and appearance. This
proposal involves constructing a one-storey flat roof extension to the rear of the property. It is not
considered that this proposal would harm the existing appearance of the site or cause excessive
disruption on the area's visual amenities in general. It is therefore believed that the principle of
the development was acceptable and in accordance with the relevant requirements of policies
PCYFF 2 and PCYFF 3 of the LDP.

general and residential amenities

The one-storey flat roof extension is finished with timber cladding. It is not considered that the
proposal will have a significant detrimental impact on the area's visual amenities. Policy PCYFF
3 of the Local Development Plan promotes good building design by ensuring that proposals
conform to a series of criteria by aiming to safeguard the recognised features and character of the
landscape and the local environment, safeguard the visual character by ensuring that building
materials are of a high standard and in-keeping with the character and appearance of the local
area and that there is suitable landscaping of the site. It is believed that this extension satisfies the
requirements above and is not visible from public places due to its size and location, with the
boundaries of the property shadowing it. In addition to this, the extension is similar in terms of
size to the sun-room which is being demolished and therefore the extension will not be
completely new to the property. As a result, it is not believed that it would stand out as an
incongruous feature in the area or contrary to the general development pattern seen there.

The building is standard in appearance, in terms of visual amenities therefore it is believed that
the proposal is acceptable and complies with the requirements of criteria 1 and 2 of policy
PCYFF 3.

When assessing the design, it is considered that there is no impact on nearby neighbouring
amenities because the proposal is a one-storey extension with high, small side windows, therefore

Page 16



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

when using the room, it would only provide light into it, and it will not be possible to see out of
them without standing directly in front of them. It is not believed that the rear doors and windows
will have a worse impact on private amenities compared with the existing sun-room.

5.6 The proposal will not cause any additional overlooking as a result of this development, and as a
result, there will be no negative impact to nearby neighbours' private amenities. Based on setting,
height and design therefore, it is considered that the proposal would be acceptable based on the
relevant requirements of policy PCYFF 2.

Biodiversity Matters

5.7 On 11 October, the Welsh Government published an update to Chapter 6 of Planning Policy
Wales (PPW), which deals with green infrastructure, net worth to biodiversity, the protection
afforded to Sites of Special Scientific Interest and trees and woodlands. A Green Infrastructure
Statement was received as part of the application. Biodiversity improvements have been proposed
in the statement, namely installing bird and bat boxes. A condition will be set on the permission
to ensure that the improvements included in the statement are completed before the use of the
proposed extension commences. It is therefore considered that the proposal complies with the
requirements of policy PS19 of the LDP, as well as Chapter 6 of PPW.

Language Matters

5.8 In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when making a decision on a
planning application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This
is reiterated further in para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, 2024), along with
Technical Advice Note 20. The Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and
Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further
guidance on how it is expected for Welsh language considerations to be incorporated in each
relevant development.

5.9 It is noted that there are some specific types of developments where it will be required for the
proposal to submit a Welsh Language Statement or a Welsh Language Impact Assessment. The
thresholds in terms of when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been highlighted in
Policy PS1 of the Joint LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. In terms of the types of
developments in question, the following is noted: The proposal does not reach the thresholds for
submitting a Welsh Language Statement or a Report on a Welsh Language Impact Assessment.
However, Appendix 5 of the SPG notes that every housing, retail, commercial or industrial
development where there is no need to submit a Welsh Language Impact Statement/Assessment
should show how consideration has been given to the language.

5.10  The proposal in question is for extending an existing residential dwelling. It is not considered that
the proposed extension is likely to have a detrimental impact on the Welsh language and therefore
it is considered that it complies with the requirements of policy PS1 in this respect.

6. Conclusions:
6.1 Having considered the above and all the relevant planning matters including the local and
national policies and guidance, as well as all the observations and objections received, it is

believed that the proposal is acceptable and satisfies the requirements of the relevant policies as
noted above.

Page 17



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF DEPARTMENT

N -

Recommendation:

To approve subject to conditions
5 years to commence the work
In accordance with plans

In accordance with the green infrastructure statement

Information note:
Welsh Water

Page 18



6T obed

LOCATION PLAN

N

Cynllunio

Dectyn - DBIDT2025

Project
—— = Address
il Q. Client
TY ARCHITECTURE
—cvi— Scale

13 ot St
™
abighibny
ws i

Proposed Extensions and Alterations - Existing Drawings
Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caemnarfon, LL55 1LL

Mr & Mrs loan Thomas

s Sy
ome s

Scale 1:1250 @A4 Drawing:- Ty/1471/SU03




PROPERTY

|

| i
EIGHBOURING .

PROPERTY

NEIGHBOURING
PROPERTY

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 08/07/2025

DRIVEWAY

NEIGHBOURING '
PROPERTY

GARDEN

NEIGHBOURING
. PROPERTY

Project
Address
k= - A Client Mr & Mrs loan Thomas
TY ARCHITECTURE
g Scale Scale 1:200 @A3

Proposed Extensions and Alterations - Existing Drawings

Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caemarfon, LL55 1LL

Drawing:- Ty/1471/SU02

0z_abed



T¢ obed

A NE'G;‘BO‘U”;‘G :
PROPERTY

"NEIGHBOURING
PROPERTY

2no. native fruit trees to be planted
within the curtilage of the site. Fruit tree's
to be either - Crab Apple, Wild Pear, Bird
Cherry, Wild Plum or Wild Cherry

NEIGHBOURING
OPERTY -

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 08/07/2025

DRIVEWAY

NEIGHBOURING *
PROPERTY

PATIO

up

PATIO

Soakaway

GARDEN

NEIGHBOURING
PROPERTY

Project
Address

Client

Scale

TY ARCHITECTURE

- P!anning Drawings o)
®

Proposed Extensions and Alterations
Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caernarfon, LL55 1LL
Mr & Mrs loan Thomas

Scale 1:200 @A3

Drawing:- Ty/1471/PL03




‘CONSERVATORY

I/,

KITCHEN

HALLWAY

9
1

EXISTING GROUND FLOOR PLAN

R R
NN NSNS
AR
NN
o AR
RN

.

NN

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 08/07/2025

R R R PG
TSI

TS N
DTN,
SN

TY ARCHITECTURE

R R R
R R AN NN X REN RN
A AN AN
AN
AL

EXISTING SIDE ELEVATION :

Project  Proposed Extensions and Alterations - Existing Drawings
Address Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caernarfon, LL55 1LL
Client Mr & Mrs loan Thomas

Scale Scale 1:100 @A3 Drawing:- TyH1471/SU01

190G e

b

e————
i




Cynllunio

Derbyn - 08/07/2025

Remove existing shown dotted in red

N
FAMILY|AREA ™ ~ P Sagl

D:xﬂnmsuﬂi ‘
-~ et 1

NEW HIGH
LEVEL WINDOW

o

NEW HIGH L, | ”
LEVEL WINDOW| |- — = .
[ g
. it Cladding Sample
o G KITCHEN =
LEVEL WINDOW| — IE
Off White Render
HALLWAY Parapet Fiat Roof
o (RN OERARRLAN DD LEAD sty
S i | i e i it Windows & Doors
- AREA -
NOT
. SURVEYED Verfical Timber
OFFICE A | 'J“‘ Cladding
| 5% I
i [\ 1]
~u |
R R R R A AN A RTe
R A A A A A R A A R A A A A A A A
A A N N N N N A N N N A A N N A A A A A N A AR NN
A A A A A A A A A A N N NN N NN N
L S S S s
A N NN N AN AN NN NN
S o
AR AR %% PROPOSED SIDE ELEVATION #aa: RARs
Proposed Extensions and Alterations e
- Planning Drawings i
Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caernarfon, LL55 1LL ol
witm
N Mr & Mrs loan Thomas
TY ARCHITECT! [——

cale 1:100 @A3 Drawing:- TyH471/PLO1

¢¢ obed



yz abed

Cynllunio

Derbyn - 08/07/2025

ne. Vivara Pro Seville Woodsione
Nest Box to be installed upon the.
norih-west facing gable as
biodiversity enhancement. To be
instalied between 1.5m and 3m
above ground level.

Off White Render

Parapet Flat Roof

=3

Vertical Timber
Cladding

P s

ST

R N A A A N A A N A A A A N A NN
VRN N A R N N N R N N G N A A T A N b o R N L e it

N A N N A N R N N R N N N N S N A N S N R N R N N N N N N S S N A N S N R S N N N S RN SNy

A R R R A R R R A R A A A R R R N R A A A R R A A P A R R R R R R RN R

B R A A A A A A N A A A A AN

R A A A A A R A A A A A N A A A A A A A A A A A R R R R N R N NN RN NN RN

G L& s 8 2 7 R R s LK GG RN G L 7

R N N N N A N A N A AR A A A R A N S N N N SN VNN Y
A S N A S N
A A A N A N A

R, NN AR GNN NG

Cladding Sample

1ne, Vivara Pro Beaumeris Woodsione
Bat Box (midi) 10 b ted upon the
south-east facing gable prior fo
commencement of all works and fo
e retained in situ for perpetuity.

&———F— Off White Render

TR

MEW HIGH
LEVEL WINDOW

(I
--W

Aluminium/Upve
Windows & Doors

N I

R R X R R N O A R R R R R R R N R R LR,
N AN NSO AR AR A AN N A A NN AN A SO N NN N M AN AN AN SN SR AN AN AN
D A A A A N A R N A A A AN AN
R A A O A A R N R A N A R A R A A A N RN RN NN
RN AN AN NN SN NN NI NN AN NN NN SNSRI N AN NN NN NN AN AN NN NN SNSRI,

A A A A A A A A A A A A N A N N A N A S A A A S A A R A A S A A AN A A A N A A A A A VY
U NN U S AU AR ST AN A AR AN NSNS
R A N R N R RN NN N NN N

N A

Remove existing shown dofted in red

Proposed Extensions and Alterations

- Planning Drawings
Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caernarfon, LL55 1LL

Mr & Mrs loan Thomas

TY ARCHITECTURE

Scale 1:100 @A3 Drawing:- Ty/1471/PL02 g




Iiill!l‘: o




Page 26



Agenda Item 5.2

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

Number: 2

Application C25/0202/40/LL
Number:

Date Registered: 12/03/25

Application Full

Type:

Community: Llannor

Ward: Abererch

Proposal: Application for change of use to locate 12 Holiday Cabins

on land at Y Ffor, Pwllheli.

L ocation: Land At Y Ffor, Pwllheli, LL53 6UT

Summary of the
Recommendation: TO REFUSE

Page 27


https://gwynedd-planning.idoxcloud.com/locations/index.html?fa=edit&id=342191

PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

11

1.2

1.3

14

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

2.1

2.2

Description:

An application to change the use of agricultural land and develop new holiday accommodation in
the form of 12 permanent holiday cabins and associated parking, alterations to the access, drainage
and landscaping. The proposal has been submitted as a diversification project on a 280-hectare
livestock local family farm. The applicant does not state where the acres are located, however, the
applicant's home is situated in Penrhyndeudraeth. The wooden cabins would be timber clad and
stained in a conservation colour. Each of the cabins would include sleeping rooms, a bathroom,
living room and kitchen / dining room. The proposal is to locate 12 cabins of 3 different designs
measuring on average 13 metres long and around 7 metres wide on the site.

The units would be sited in the corner of an agricultural field abutting a narrow and winding class
3 road. It is noted that the adjacent county road connects to the class 1 county road from Pwllheli
to Y Ffér and the class 2 county road from Y Ffér to Nefyn.

The following documents have been submitted as a part of the application:

Ecological Assessment

Green Infrastructure Statement
Design and Access Statement
Drainage Strategy

Transport Statement

The site is in the countryside. Although there is no special landscape designation to the application
area, it is of an undeveloped appearance and rural character landscape. A residential property, not
in the applicant's ownership, is located around 110m to the east and south-west of the site. The
site's topography slopes down from the land towards the county road.

It is proposed to develop a private clean and foul water drainage system for the proposal.

The landscaping scheme submitted with the application shows a proposal to plant a vast number of
trees along the south-western and south-eastern boundary of the site, as well as to reinforce the
current hedge along the county road; however, details of that scheme were not received with the
application.

The site is served by an existing access to the adjacent county road.

The developer has not submitted the results of any porosity / percolation tests in relation to the
private sewerage system.

The application is submitted to the Planning Committee as the application site is greater than 0.5
hectares.

Relevant Policies:

Section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and paragraph 2.1.2 of Planning
Policy Wales emphasise that planning decisions should be in accordance with the Development
Plan, unless material considerations indicate otherwise. Planning considerations include National
Planning Policy and the Local Development Plan.

The Well-being of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2015 places a duty on the Council to take
reasonable steps in exercising its functions to meet the 7 well-being goals within the Act. This

Page 28




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

2.3

2.4

report has been prepared in consideration of the Council’s duty and the 'sustainable development
principle’, as set out in the 2015 Act. In reaching the recommendation, the Council has sought to
ensure that the needs of the present are met without compromising the ability of future generations
to meet their own needs.

Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan 2011-26, adopted 31 July 2017
PS 1. The Welsh Language and Culture

ISA 1: Infrastructure Provision

PS 4: Sustainable transport, development and accessibility

TRA 2: Parking standards

TRA 4: Managing transport impacts

PS 5: Sustainable Development

PS 6: Alleviating and Adapting to the Effects of Climate Change

PCYFF 1: Development boundaries

PCYFF 2: Development criteria

PCYFF 3: Design and place shaping

PCYFF 4: Design and landscaping

PS 14: The Visitor Economy

TWR 3: Static Caravan and Chalet Sites and Permanent Alternative Holiday Accommodation
PS 19: Conserve and where appropriate enhance the natural environment

AMG3: Protecting and Improving Features and Qualities that are Unique to the Character of the
Local Landscape

AMG 5: Local biodiversity conservation

PS 20: Preserving and where appropriate enhancing heritage assets

AT 4: Protection of non-designated archaeological sites and their setting

Supplementary Planning Guidance: Tourist Facilities and Accommodation (March 2021)

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG): Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable
Communities

National Policies:
Future Wales: The National Plan 2040
Planning Policy Wales (Edition 11 - February 2021)

Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12 - February 2024)

Page 29



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

Technical Advice Note: 5 Planning and Nature Conservation (2009)
Technical Advice Note: 12 Design: June (2016)
Technical Advice Note 15: Development and Flood Risk (2004)

Technical Advice Note: 18 Transport: March (2007)

3. Relevant Planning History:
3.1 C23/0280/40/LL - New agricultural access — Approved — 24.05.2023.

4, Consultations:

Community/Town Council: Observations from Llannor Community Council: Refuse, change of
use of agricultural land in an area of open countryside, no other
evidence of diversification and nobody living on the site on a
permanent basis. Concern about traffic issues for drivers and
pedestrians on a sub-standard road. Concern about pedestrians
walking home along an unlit, narrow road, late at night, from a nearby
public house. Over-development in an area where several holiday
accommodations in the area are unable to reach the letting threshold
and have to pay the Council Tax premium.

Transportation Unit: | refer to the above application and | confirm that the transportation
unit does not have any objection. | request that the following
conditions/notes are included with any planning permission granted:

The access must be planned and built in complete accordance with
the submitted plan

The applicant must take every precaution to prevent surface water
from the curtilage of the site from discharging onto the highway.

Further observations:

Concerns have been raised about the suitability of the road to provide
for the traffic, which is likely to be generated by this proposal, as well
as the validity of the data obtained from the traffic speed survey. |
offer the following observations:

The site is located around 0.5km from the A499, which means that a
vehicle travelling on a consistent speed of 20mph reaches the site in
less than a minute.

Considering the size of the proposed cabins, it is expected that most
of the users would be family groups arriving in a single vehicle.

Page 30



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

Consequently, it is very unlikely that the site's capacity of 24 vehicles
would be reached at any given time. Because of the site's proximity
to the A499, it is anticipated that most vehicle journeys would derive
from that direction. Many points have been widened along the road
reaching to the site access.

Concerns have also been raised about the accuracy of the average
speed of vehicles, reported as 22.6mph, travelling to the south-east,
particularly due to the highway geometry in the traffic survey
location. Although it is acknowledged that approaching speeds from
the west could actually be higher, the nature and dimensions of the
highway in the vicinity of the site suggests that any difference would
not be huge.

A proposed visibility splay of 2.4m x 37m would be appropriate for
the sites with vehicular approaching speeds of up to 28mph. It should
also be noted that the splay has been plotted a full 2.4m from the
vehicular road and to the nearest verge. Considering the width of the
vehicular road and the fact that the vehicles approaching would be on
the far side, it would be reasonable to plot the splay to the middle of
the road, instead of to the nearest verge. Additionally, the road
features would allow for reducing the road measurement from 2.4m
to 2.0m. These two assessments would extend the visibility available
beyond the 37m currently shown in the application.

I confirm, for the above reasons, that the transportation unit does not
object. | request that the following conditions/notes are included with
any planning permission granted:

CONDITIONS: The access must be planned and constructed in full
accordance with the submitted plans. The applicant must take every
precaution to prevent surface water from the curtilage of the site from
discharging onto the highway.

Natural Resources Wales: We have concerns regarding the application as submitted as
insufficient information has been provided to support the proposal.
To overcome these concerns, you should ask for more information
from the applicant regarding foul drainage. Should this information
not be provided, we will object to this planning application. Further
details are provided below.

Foul Drainage

We understand that the development is not served by the public
sewer, and the application form notes that foul drainage is to be
discharged to the private sewage treatment system.

Under these circumstances, the Welsh Government Circular
008/2018 advises that full and detailed consideration should be given

Page 31



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

to the environmental criteria listed under paragraph 2.6 of the
Circular, to justify using the private sewerage. In this case,
insufficient information has been provided in relation to the private
sewerage system and the location of the proposed drainage. The
application, therefore, does not provide sufficient grounds for an
assessment to be undertaken of the pollution risks to the water
environment, deriving from the proposed development.

Specifically, the application submitted does not show that removing
the foul effluent from the proposed private sewerage system would be
effective in this location. The developer has not submitted the results
of any porosity / percolation tests in relation to the private sewerage
system. Also, there are no calculations for the specific size of the
proposed drainage area or the location of the foul effluent discharge.

Therefore, we ask for details about the location and size of the
drainage area, as well as the results of the percolation tests to be
submitted before a decision is made on the application.

The developer must ensure that there is sufficient space in the
drainage field as noted in BS 6297:2007+A1:2008.

After receiving the above information, we will review our position
and inform your Authority in line with that.

Applicants who wish to implement a private sewerage system must
either apply to us for an environmental permit or register with us to
be exempted from the permit's requirements. Septic tanks and small
sewage treatment units that meet certain criteria may be registered as
exempt.

A step-by-step guide to register an exception is available on our
website.

If the septic tank or private sewage treatment system is not eligible
for an exemption, the Applicant will need to apply for an
environmental permit, further details can be found here. Should a
permit be required, further information may be required as part of
that application process. The Applicant is therefore advised to
contact us for pre-application advice at the earliest opportunity to try
to ensure that there is no conflict between any planning permission
granted and the permit requirements. Further details on how to
access our pre-application service can be found here.

It is important to note that a grant of planning permission does not
guarantee that a permit will be granted. A proposal may be deemed
unacceptable either because of environmental risk or because upon
further investigation, a connection to a mains sewer is practicable.
Applicants are encouraged to ensure they have all the required
permissions, consents, permits and any other approvals in place prior

Page 32



PLANNING COMMITTEE

DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

Welsh Water:

Public Protection Unit:

Welsh Archaeological Trust:

to commencement of works on the site.

Where private sewage treatment/disposal facilities are utilised, they
must be installed and maintained in accordance with British
Standard 6297 and Approved Document H of the Building
Regulations. We also refer the Applicant to Guidance for Pollution
Prevention 4 on the NetRegs website, which provides further
information.

Protected Species

We note that the information submitted to support the above
application (Ecological Surveys for Proposed Holiday Lodges, Y
Ffor, Pwllheli by Gritten Ecology dated 26 June 2024) noted that it
is unlikely that protected species are using the application site.
Therefore, we have no comments to make on the application as
submitted in relation to bats.

We recommend that you discuss the need to ensure more measures or
avoidance measures with your internal ecological adviser.

Since the proposal intends utilising an alternative to mains drainage
we would advise that the applicant seek advice from Natural
Resources Wales and or the Local Authority Building Control
Department / Approved Building Inspector as both are responsible to
regulate alternative methods of drainage. However, should
circumstances change and a connection to the public sewerage
system/public sewerage treatment works is preferred we must be re-
consulted on this application.

If the applicant wishes to install a New system, the sewage tanks and
subsidiary system must comply with British Standard 6297:2007 +
Al 2008, and Approved Document H (Drainage and waste disposal)
of the Building Regulations. It is not permitted to install any part of
the system within 10 metres of a stream, ground drain or ditch. The
applicant should provide details of the percolation tests that have been
conducted for the stone ditch to ensure that the soil is suitable. The
applicant will need to contact Natural Resources Wales to register any
sewage tanks or compact sewage treatment units.

The application site is located within the LIyn and Ynys Enlli
Registered Landscape of Outstanding Historic Interest. The
proposed development is not of a scale that requires a specific
assessment of impact on the Registered Landscape (ASIDOHL), but
the character of the landscape as containing a diverse archaeological
resource is relevant. Near the site, the HER records a Late
Neolithic/Early Bronze Age burial chamber (scheduled monument

Page 33



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

CNO095), an enclosed hut settlement of presumed late Iron
Age/Roman date (PRN 435), a medieval holy well (LB 21323) and
several post-medieval farms. None of these is directly affected by
the proposals, but they serve to illustrate the range of archaeology
that might exist locally.

Historic mapping and aerial photographs indicate a long history of
agriculture at the site. In common with much of lowland Llyn,
decades of ploughing and land improvement have removed any
surface traces of any archaeological features that might be present,
although buried deposits may survive. This has created a data bias in
the HER where sites have survived better, and are consequently
better recorded, in more marginal land; however, fieldwork is
consistently demonstrating that more productive agricultural land
has always been intensively utilised and settled. There is therefore
considered to be a general potential for archaeological evidence to
be present in undeveloped land in the peninsula, particularly of early
medieval and earlier date.

To inform upon the presence or absence of buried archaeology, and
any potential impact upon this from the development and ancillary
work, it is recommended that a geophysical survey of the application
site is undertaken. In accordance with Planning Policy Wales 12
para. 6.1.26 and JLDP Policy AT4 with para. 6.5.46, this should be
undertaken prior to determination of the application, to enable the
planning authority to make an informed decision and allow for any
design revision or further action to be completed. The survey must
be undertaken by an appropriate professional firm, who must agree a
specification for the work with us in advance. The resulting report
must be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority.

Biodiversity Unit This development is likely to avoid any significant impact to
biodiversity.

Mitigation for any potential operational impact of the development
and biodiversity enhancements are implied by the drawings, but a
more detailed soft-landscaping plan should be provided before
planning is determined.

This should include:

Tree species to be planted

Number and density of trees / shrubs planted
Planting method

Any ongoing maintenance requirements

Page 34



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

Specification of wildlife boxes to be installed

Locations of wildlife boxes

Licensing: Units - Structures

It appears that the proposed 'units' are within the definition of a
'structure’, and they are not defined as a caravan on wheels and
therefore, a site licence will not be required. However, the
requirements of the Health and Safety at Work etc. Act 1974, Fire
Regulations and other Regulations would be relevant.

Should the units be defined as a ‘caravan on wheels', a site licence
would be required along with full compliance with the licence
condition requirements (Model Standards 1989) under the Caravan
Site and Control of Development Act 1960. Model Standards 1989
www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/trwyddedcarafanau

Units - Structures

The proposed units appear to be of the definition of a ‘structure’ and
may not be the definition of a caravan on wheels and therefore a site
license will not be required. However, the requirements of the Health
and Safety at Work Act 1974, Fire Regulations and other Regulations
would apply.

If the “units’ are defined as a 'caravan on wheels', a site license will
be required and full compliance with the requirements of license
conditions (Model Standards 1989) under The Caravan Sites and
Development Control Act 1960. Model Standards 1989 - Static
Caravans www.gwynedd.llyw.cymru/caravanlicence

Page 35



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

Public Consultation: A notice was posted on site, and nearby residents were notified, and
correspondence was received objecting on the grounds of:

e The road is busy.

Cars travel quicker than 20mph as noted in the application.

¢ Road traffic speed measuring equipment installed on a blind
corner where Traffic would slow down naturally.

e Cars come face-to-face along the road and create problems
for local residents.

e Existing sites unable to reach their numbers and so the situa-
tion would be exacerbated.

e Would create a precedent for similar developments.

e Applicant is not local and not in a position to look after the
site.

e The proposal would increase noise, traffic and activity on the
site, county road and local area.

e Would disrupt the landscape.

e  A499 Junction (Pwllheli to Y Ffor) is dangerous.

e Additional traffic disrupting the amenities and enjoyment of
users of the adjacent road on foot.

e Water supply problems.

e Concerns raised about the value of the proposal to the local
economy.

e The information regarding the speed of traffic on the road in
the Transport Report is incorrect.

e Water Strategy prepared during August 2024, a dry time of
the year. There is substantial surface water on the road and
fields in the winter.

¢ No convenient passing places along the adjacent county road.

e The applicant lives outside Dwyfor and has no house in the
local area; this would cause difficulties in terms of supervis-
ing and keeping order at the site.

5. Assessment of the material planning considerations:
The principle of the development

5.1 The application site is in an area that is defined as open countryside in the LDP. Policy PCYFF1 of
the LDP states that proposals located outside development boundaries will be refused unless they
are in accordance with specific policies in the LDP or national planning policies or that the proposal
demonstrates that its location in the countryside is essential.

5.2 The application site is in an area that is defined as open countryside and is within a Landscape of
Special Historic Interest.

5.3 It is proposed to change the use of an agricultural field for the siting of 12 holiday cabins.
Paragraph 5.1.1 of the Tourist Facilities and Accommodation SPG provides guidance on the type
of ‘cabins' is covered in the description of a 'chalet’ for the purposes of policy TWR 3. If it is
considered that the ‘cabins' fall under the description of a ‘chalet’, then policy TWR 3 applies.
Criterion 1 of Policy TWR3: Static Caravan and Chalet Sites and Permanent Alternative Holiday
Accommodation, notes:

1. Proposals for the development of new static caravan sites (i.e. single or twin caravan), holiday
chalet sites or permanent alternative camping accommodation will be refused within the An?!)eaeée 36



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

Coast Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty, LIyn Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty and the
Special Landscape Areas. In other locations, proposals for new static caravan or holiday chalet
sites and permanent alternative camping accommodation will only be granted where:

i. It can be demonstrated that it doesn’t lead to a significant intensification in the provision of
static caravan or chalet or permanent alternative camping sites in the locality; no information has
been submitted with the application to show that it would not create an over-provision in the area,
bearing in mind that there are several caravan sites in the local area.

ii. That the proposed development is of high quality in terms of design, layout and appearance,
and is sited in an unobtrusive location which is well screened by existing landscape features
and/or where units can be readily assimilated into the landscape in a way which does not
significantly harm the visual quality of the landscape; and; the site provides 12 cabins sited close
together and the site does not include any additional services or facilities including a reception,
play area or open space. The proposal is located in an open field which is visible and obvious to
users of the county road; installing 12 cabins as proposed would have a substantial harmful
impact on this rural landscape.

iii. That the site is close to the main roads network and that adequate access can be provided
without significantly harming landscape characteristics and features; it is noted from the site's
planning history that planning permission was granted to create a new agricultural access to the
field in 2023, and the proposal uses that access and therefore the plan does not show further work.

54 1i) specifically refers to an excess of new developments. To define 'excess' in this context, one
should refer to the paragraph of explanation in 6.3.69 in policy TWR 3 (along with Appendix 3 -
Sensitivity and Capacity Maps (paragraph 5.3.3), SPG Tourist Facilities and Accommodation)
that refers to the 'Anglesey, Gwynedd and Eryri National Park Landscape Sensitivity and
Capacity Study' (Gillespies, 2014). Within each Landscape Character Area (as described by the
Gwynedd Landscape Strategy (2012) the landscape's character is assessed to ascertain the
capacity of the local landscape for further developments of holiday chalets or caravans.

55 This specific development falls within the G10 Landscape Character Area (Mid LIyn). The
Landscape Sensitivity and Capacity Study notes the indicative capacity for the Landscape
Character Area. Specifically, in relation to the LCA relevant to this application, it is noted,
"Outside the AONBs and SLAs there may be very limited capacity for developments typically
comprising of small scale to very small scale, sensitively sited and well-planned developments
that should relate well to the existing built environment / urban ground cover”. The Study defines
very small developments as those up to 10 units and small developments as those between 10 - 25
units. Therefore, appropriate consideration will need to be given to the scale of the proposed
development in the location in question. It is noticed that the proposal falls within the definition
of a small development, nevertheless, attention is drawn to the fact that the Study refers to the
built environment / existing urban land cover and therefore not within an area of countryside. It is
also noted that the Study represents a strategic study, and it is not prescriptive on a site level.
Therefore, it is considered that the proposal is contrary to this criterion based on this location.

5.6 1ii) refers to the design, layout and appearance of the proposed development, and that it is of a
high quality. The policy states that new developments should be in an unobtrusive location.
Within the Plan, an unobtrusive location is described as one which is well screened by existing
landscape features or where the units can be readily assimilated into the landscape in a way which
does not significantly harm the visual quality of the landscape.

Page 37



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

5.7

5.8

5.9

Policy AMG3: 'Protecting and improving Features and Qualities which are unique to the
Character of the Local Landscape' states that proposals must demonstrate that they do not have a
significant adverse impact upon features and qualities that are unique to the local landscape in
terms of visual, historic, geological, ecological and cultural aspects.

Furthermore, Policy PCYFF 4: 'Design and Landscaping', states that all proposals should
integrate into their surroundings. Proposals that have not considered landscaping matters from the
outset as part of the design proposal should be refused.

The units are in an agricultural field located in open countryside. The field is on a slight slope
which runs down towards the county road and the access. The units are in the corner of the field
near the access; a site that is visible and prominent to the public. The units are located close
together and as the site is currently an open field, it is proposed to landscape around the units and
the site. It is realised that a hedge runs along the top of a north-eastern boundary clawdd, but not
the lowest part near the access, this is very dense and therefore creates an effective screen. It is
also realised that the access proposes substantial landscaping work along the side of the chalets'
field to create a new screen. The Policy asks for sites to be screened effectively by existing and
not proposed features; therefore, the application fails at this point.

Visual amenities

5.10

511

5.12

5.13

Policy PCYFF 3 states that proposals will be approved, including extensions and changes to
existing buildings and structures, if they comply with a number of criteria including that the
proposal adds to or improves the character or appearance of the site, the building or the area in
terms of setting, appearance, scale, mass, the height and elevation treatment; that it respects the
context of the site and its place in the local landscape; that it uses materials that are appropriate to
their surroundings and incorporates soft landscaping; that it improves a safe and integrated transport
and communications network; that it limits the risk and danger of flood water run-off and prevents
pollution; that it achieves an inclusive design that allows access for all and helps to create healthy
and vibrant environments taking into account the health and well-being of future users.

The site lies within an agricultural field in open countryside, with the appearance and character of
the site characteristic of the open agricultural lands in the area. The hedge on the top of the north-
eastern boundary of the site creates a less than effective screen for the proposal, which creates a
visible site from the adjacent county road.

The proposal involves installing 12 substantially-sized wooden cabins on the site with ancillary
work including a landscaping plan. The holiday units would occupy land along the boundary of the
county road.

Criterion 1 ii of Policy TWR 3 states that the development should be of high quality and situated
in an unobtrusive location that is well concealed by the existing landscape features, and/or where
the units can be easily assimilated in the landscape in a way that does not cause substantial harm to
the visual quality of the landscape. Policy PCYFF 3 in the LDP requires such developments to
respect, improve and add to the character and appearance of the area. It is not considered that the
proposal would achieve those requirements. It is realised that the plan shows landscaping work
around the site, but such work would take years to establish, and it is neither a permanent feature
in any case, nor a natural feature of this area. It is considered that establishing timber cabins on the
site would have a substantial negative impact on the area, contrary to the objectives of Policy TWR
3 and PCYFF 3 of the LDP.

Page 38




PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

General and residential amenities

5.14

5.15

The application was advertised on the site and nearby residents were informed and correspondence
was received objecting to the application for the reasons noted under the Public Consultations
chapter above. The site is in open countryside, a site and area that is free of commercial activities,
excluding occasional agricultural machinery on the fields, as well as light traffic on the roads. It is
realised that there is a historical static caravan site over 500 metres to the south-west. Residential
houses are dispersed here and there, and two are located within ¢.150m to the south-east and south.
A house named Bodlas (nearest house) is located near the road, with an access to the road.

It is considered that the site's activities, along with an increase in traffic generated by the proposal
along the quiet road, would disrupt the tranquillity of the area and the character and attractive
appearance of the local rural area. The proposal does not include any reception or recreational
facilities, e.g., an open parcel of land or playing field for children; therefore, there will be no
supervision of the site, and it is likely that those staying on the site will use the open field area
behind or around the site for recreational activities or for walking their dogs. The activities that are
characteristic of people on their holidays are different to the activities of those of residential
properties and could include periods of loud noise at times during the night, as well as regular
vehicular movements. It is considered that this could cause a substantial detrimental impact to the
amenities of nearby residents. The proposal is therefore contrary to policy PCYFF 2 of the LDP.

Transport and access matters

5.16

5.17

5.18

5.19

It is proposed to develop a static cabin site for 12 units. The site is in open countryside with access
gained along a narrow and winding Class 3 County Road. There is an existing access to the site,
and entrance developed following the granting of planning consent as an agricultural access in
2023.

It is noted that the Planning Service has received correspondence objecting to the proposal because
of the statutory publicity given to the matter. It is noted that concerns have been raised about the
suitability of the road to provide for the traffic, which is likely to be generated by this proposal, as
well as the validity of the data obtained from the traffic speed survey. Further observations were
received from the Transportation Unit on these objections, which are included in the consultations
table above.

The concerns of the local residents are acknowledged, however, the observations received from
the Transportation Unit provides a full assessment of the road's circumstances and why the proposal
would not cause road difficulties. In the above circumstances, it is not considered that the proposal
would be substantially contrary to Policy TRA 4 of the LDP.

It is noted that there will be a parking provision for every unit in the site, and the Transportation
Unit has not raised concerns about that. The proposal would not be contrary to Policy TRA 2 of
the LDP.

Biodiversity matters

5.20

The proposal involves developing a section of an agricultural field to create a holiday cabin site.
The work would include installing the cabins on the land, creating an access road through the site,
as well as other associated work. An ecological report was received with the application and the
comments of the Council's Biodiversity Unit states that the likely proposal avoids any impact on
biodiversity and that there is a proposal to provide biodiversity enhancements. Should the proposal
be acceptable, a planning condition could be imposed to receive further information aboﬁge

ge 39



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

biodiversity enhancement being proposed. To this end, it is considered that the proposal is
acceptable and complies with the requirements of policy PS19 of the LDP as well as chapter 6 of
Planning Policy Wales, which relates to the step-wise approach.

Archaeological Matters

521

Comments were received from Heneb on the application, which stated that an archaeological
survey should be conducted before deciding on the application. The Department sent this
information to the applicant, but no response was received. Despite that, the assessment would not
have changed the view of the officer that the application cannot be supported due to the proposal's
impact on the landscape. Nevertheless, it is not considered that sufficient information has been
submitted as a part of the application to confirm that the proposal is acceptable in terms of policy
AT4 of the LDP.

Drainage Matters

5.22

The proposal includes providing a new Sewerage Treatment System to deal with foul water waste
from the development. Natural Resources Wales have confirmed that insufficient information has
been submitted as a part of the application. Their comments confirm that the application submitted
does not show that it would effectively dispose of foul effluent from their proposed private
sewerage system in this location. The developer has not submitted the results of any porosity /
percolation tests in relation to the private sewerage system. Also, there are no calculations for the
specific size of the proposed drainage area or the location of the foul effluent discharge. Therefore,
there is a need to submit details on the size of the drainage area as well as the results of percolation
tests, before a decision is made on the application. The comments from Public Protection reiterate
this. Therefore, it is considered that there is insufficient information to confirm that the proposal is
acceptable and therefore it is contrary to the requirements of Policy ISA 1, which ensures a
sufficient infrastructure provision.

Language Matters

5.23

5.24

5.25

5.26

In accordance with the Planning (Wales) Act 2015, it is a duty when determining a planning
application to consider the Welsh language, where it is relevant to that application. This is reiterated
further in para 3.28 of Planning Policy Wales (Edition 12, 2024), along with Technical Advice
Note 20.

Supplementary Planning Guidance (SPG) 'Maintaining and Creating Unique and Sustainable
Communities' (adopted July 2019), provides further guidance on how it is expected for Welsh
language considerations to be incorporated in each relevant development.

It is noted that there are some specific types of developments where it will be required for the
proposal to submit a Welsh Language Statement or Report on the Welsh Language Impact
Assessment. The thresholds in terms of when it is expected to submit a Statement/Report have been
highlighted in Policy PS1 of the Joint LDP, along with Diagram 5 of the SPG. The proposed
development does not reach these thresholds.

Excluding the developments reaching the thresholds for submitting a Welsh Language Impact
Statement/Assessment noted in Policy PS1, guidance is given on the types of relevant applications
where consideration needs to be given to the Welsh language in Appendix 5 (The Screening
Process) of the SPG (part Ch to Dd). The guidance included within Appendix 5 notes that every
retail, commercial or industrial development where there is no need to submit a Welsh Language
Impact Statement / Assessment should show how consideration has been given to the Iangualgfaa

e 40



PLANNING COMMITTEE DATE: 29/09/2025
REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT HEAD OF SERVICE

appears that no information has been submitted with the application stating how consideration has
been given to the Welsh language when drawing up the proposal. To this end, it is not possible to
reach a conclusion about the compliance of the proposal with Policy PS1 based on the lack of
information, and due to the objection to the principle of the proposal as previously noted, this
information was not sought.

6. Conclusions:

6.1 After considering all material planning matters in full, it is not considered that the application can
be supported due to the proposal's impact on the landscape and nearby residents.

Recommendation: Refuse.
To refuse — reasons

1. The proposed lodge site and associated works due to the number of units, their setting, design,
sitting and appearance in the landscape, increase in the use of hardstanding areas, will result in a
feature that is prominent and intrusive feature within the open countryside and would have a det-
rimental impact on the landscape and on the visual amenities of the rural area and lead to a signif-
icant intensification in the provision of permanent sites in the locality. The proposal is therefore
contrary to criteria 1.i and ii. policy TWR 3 and policy PCYFF 3 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd
Joint Local Development Plan (July 2017) and the Supplementary Planning Guidance: Holiday
Accommodation.

2. The scale of the proposal would create excessive manoeuvres and general activities along the ad-
jacent highway and within the site creating noise and disturbance to the detriment of nearby resi-
dential properties. The proposal is therefore considered contrary to policy PCYFF 2 of the Angle-
sey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (July 2017).

3. There is insufficient information in the form of details on the location and size of the drainage area
as well as the results of the percolation tests in connection with the proposed Sewerage Treatment
System. Therefore, the proposal is contrary to the requirements of policy ISA 1 of the Gwynedd
and Anglesey Joint Local Development Plan (July 2017), which ensures adequate infrastructure.

4. Insufficient information has been submitted with the application to note how consideration has
been given to the Welsh language when drawing up the proposal. To this end, it is not possible to
reach a conclusion regarding the proposal’s compliance with Policy PS1 of the Gwynedd and An-
glesey Joint Local Development Plan (July 2017), as well as Supplementary Planning Guidance
‘Maintaining and Creating Distinctive and Sustainable Communities’ (adopted July 2017), relating
to the Welsh language.

5. Insufficient information including a geophysical survey has been received as a part of the applica-
tion, therefore, it is not possible to reach a conclusion about the proposal's compliance with policy
AT4 of the Anglesey and Gwynedd Joint Local Development Plan (July 2017), which safeguards
undesignated archaeological sites and their setting.

Page 41



2 obed

Proposed Holiday Lodges on land at Y Ffor, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 6UT.

Client :- Mr D P Jones, Glan Y Wern Farm, Llanfrothen, Penrhyndeudrath, Gwynedd, LL48 6SG.

0 25 50 75 100 m
—_— I I
Scale 1:2500 - 1cm = 25m - A4 Size

239000 239100 239200 239300 239400 239500
| | 1
_ }//, ! 77
Lambe Planning & Design
oo Consultants for Pianning, Design and Landscape
\ The Galeri
Victoria Dock
\ Caemarfon
Gveymedd
LL5¢ SEE
338400 Ao slie wian. LarrbePlanningandDesign.co.uk [~ 338400
pplication Site [Duate: 12.03.2025 © Capyright
Drg Mo: LP1.0 Scale: 1:2500
|
ﬁ
other lend in ownership /\
338300 338300
\_\
338200 — T 338200
Gorffwysfa
\ A499
sther land in owrsership
338100 — T / -+ 338100
1 |
239000 239100 239200 239300 239400 239500

© Crown copyright and database rights 2025 OS5 AC0000848283. Public rights of way shown on this map have been taken from Local Authority definitive maps. The

representation on this map of any other read, track or path is no evidence of the existence of a right of way.

SR YN

Serial No: 305625 /@!\ Sindnance
Centre Coordinates; 239252,338275 gb Survey
Production Date:12/03/2025



i i i i ] i i
-
Proposed Holiday Lodges on land at Y Ffor, Pwllheli, Gwynedd, LL53 6UT. Y §§ O 3
Client - Mr Dafydd P Jones, Glan Y \Warn Farm, Llanfrothen, Penrhyndeudrath, Gwynedd, LL48 6506. {5') B % E“ﬁn
5 Sa
oFD . 0
% spepi §°
255 54 B
GO E#Z% i3
1 oEd ExEgl a1
= | ,__0%5 Eo‘-}&}i LI
) | J 1, + } 2 i1 | 5e :
s T 18

12 no. Holiday Lodges

exisbng majr trees

new tree planting &
landscaping Lells in
native species

existing entrance

existng major trees
P + l swe
[ f T -+ |
' o

-|D Lambe Flanning & Design
o s s
QD s o e
«Q 2 £ 3
@ LB B8
q> L] w v L eoingancDesky s o,k
& Dot 128 Mg 2004 (D Coparight
n @« et S
1 i i 1 I i 8 4 1 2 & + —
D L { 1 S i i 1 1§




\

CH DL A DD B R A VLN
Elevation

=

Elevation

This home is designed in accordance with BS3632

R AR AAAAAMRRRARARARAAAAR AR AR A A

levatiof

450mm [1-5 11/167

12802mm [42]

450mm [1-5 3/4]

Aas0mm [1-5 111167]

156mm [6 1/8°]

2490mm [B-2 11167

3667mm [12-0 18] 1647mm [5'-4 /8]

1716mm [5-7 91167

bt i 1

14

96mm [3 347

g6mm (3 3147

1400mm x 850mm

600mm x 450mm

[ —

450mm 15 11/167]

N
S

00mm x 1400mm
| wm" Window Opiuteinda .. O indoy ] | . ¢
i T | — 1 T
T T gy — : T U TR
E 400x 14000 wepains |_vim | gan | won sn /| — High 400x900 0 | E
-2 e Shetving V Point & Socket &
= e Frecar = inigraize Hi, a 2| P Tso0mm FrL- | I
£ 0150, e H 1| Reinforce wail i
H e mr S e, gk | | %
\ggu whinbit toeet | egox 1200 o
; - | o ne G Tl i |
e F i1 g { | . o jardrobe Area Bedroom 1| e swndars &
5 | e rEidone | e Carpat frve | Lk
" T 9
] Ak [ Kitchen £, v e P = -—_\}s% 5 2
& & Bass U S
£ J L Ll I Dimmer far ! + E
5 Coc cunas oy nﬁ.& Headboand T &
& s an | e et o Spotlghts =
Diner = o [l | e T oy | A5 E
Vinyl - | o
Vaulted Ceiling to Hallway e
Lounge, Diner, Carpst oft Access Drawl
Kithen, Entrance Hall (] by Ladder - G D
1 l__and Light {4 as Dro| | o
(@) 8 Eco-Joist Swiich e 1 8
i : = >, S | | e 0
i 1000mm x_ 150 mm . ot w 5ioms g
o sat P pnmaror  SPelf = !
o Headboard
i Spotlights i =
e = =
b i =
45 Standord Boiler/Airing E
;“g- 600 % 1200) Dousle Déa ‘m ] =
@ Chung, | Point & Sockst = =
% 1500mm FFL - B ' s
£ £C Cravan Twanty10 Desians | ounge Relnferca Wal = g
8 Chair Paony Walnut Coffee s ;E x £
2 Table (CT-P-WA} s [} % - 5
e Bedroom 2 “ i &l E 7
Carpet g E
B B -® g I £
) Walk in @
-~ 270mm FFL w e~ ‘ Reiniorce Wall siomn | Wardrose | =
£ o T FFL wn Copat
I i U ! 400x8000
e pr—
. 1 - s =
s i =l —
o
A50mm (15 1116°] RWP T 450mm [1°5 11167
T = e mo = e = B e e S e — e — e
3500mm Damer £
148mm [5 347 956mm (3 34 S8mm {3 344" S6mm (3 3/4% 156mm (6 1/8°] ‘ | g
o R R s AR . |
450mm [1-5 114167 | E 12802mm 142" | ‘ 450mm [15 34"
5 B |Descr| tion 1
LEGEND NOTES: Rev.| Date | By P bae: | DDIMMIYY Bella Vista 2 Bed (2DB) ES WI
0 H710i18] AF [Updated elevations
/\ Presti e HO eseeker L [single Socket Smake Alarm N/A I | [Upd e ) , )
‘ : m L ovisie s P Scale elative 42' x 22' (12.80m x 6.70m) Nominal
Park & Leisure Homes T s s =
skl ol = bazhird Drawn: ?7? Customer - Park
Shipton Way, Express Business Park, Rushden, Northants NN10 6GL N |Thermostat [ET  |consumer unit D E R B Y
-|J'er. 0845 0702345 / 01933 354000  Fax: 01933 354047 / 01933 354049 g [r— % |aarone _—
X ote: N
oy Eonag ¢ e com O 2032025 a QN 22227 Customers Signature:
Qy\sn our website: www_prestigeparkandleisurehomes.com T isotator @ Ceiling Rose & Pendant SALES |SS U E
s e e i e sl ki d 1 Way Light Switch [>:] Downlight Dwg No: 777?
se at plan and elevations are a guide and shoul u ilhaz live i il
cl urposes only. The extemal dimensions of the unit are subject to variation, E 2 Way Light Switch B> |Under Locker Light A further drawmg will be sent tq the customer Date:
RMependant upon the exterior finish specified. Celling Extractar & |ExetorTap when adapted for Production Issue SeralNo:| 18 72 007777 .




DocuSign Envelope ID: AS4F4183-7BBD-4ED8-AABF-099BDB986F9A

Elevation A

Elevation C
SALES ISSUE This copy is to review and/or amend before a technical review.

W ELEVATION B W

Elevation D

Elevation B
Please note that the elevations are for illustration purposes.

: r 53 T e
EJ 8540mm (215 716°] 1796mm [5-1011/16°] 1405mm (37 5167 3576mm 1120 78] 2z
£ 156mm (6 1/6°] 98mm (3 34] 96mm (3 34] S [33/4°] 156mm (8 a] E
g e = - = £
2 2
i i
500mm  1600MGOOMM X 1600MABEDM X 1600mm &00mm x 530mm 00mm x 530mm
RWP Windaw Windaw Window Ovsaure Windew Ousoure Window RWP
131 a
} ! i s e 7y = i 7 T t ! ! 1
| ) i n i — j— — — | =i
ot Dining Room 8 E— Bl =2
Caminatn : § 5
g Vechae ! o %0 x 1660 D gggy g
5 : =4 ol &
200 En Suite 1 1
E N uss E
i B L Den Larirai -
: i — Bt i m 5
& T 109 dramer " Hao || | M ok @
= Sousrzon || | |17 obem))] g e [ §f o
‘Chrome iH Creoms 4| Zg == E g
Soguat ", )
= LI — Gatery i oy 1
| S e
Gallery Direct CookhamD ! i  — P s | | | Batnoom T e | Diact2 8¢ (Redumi i = & 2
o | E e — | [ vty S e Miror Door 3 s L Winon 3 xE
L] sedin iifimenican FIF 12000mm x 800 Robe a E
D=l ek wih o g =
e storage adove. § =
‘Breakfas! ¥ sasnm Alcove |
Bar 5 Ctacking B¢ . L il 300 use | . S
)
ieland as main % Bug 5 1 {
> vaia : oy o i E‘; 3
& rfare sasmm Direct s BRRE o
o d ; i Vauted Cellng | (5] c ) D > s o AR L LI £ L
= £ - ; rempoary | Thraughout Home Inner Hall e o 18a0mm FFL- g m
[e) 3 ' o — Suppor Braces " e G 3 Nellffln | Reinfoss Wal \ v 8§ <
= - § = iy = i — E
: ey g e ======g g1+ — ] =
& GluLam T g g2 =
Padsion { N s I 1871295 x 45Tmm) B
a 4 Seater Hign & Gs0meh x 701 {Postrt 1y = i =]
u Soln Quinn Plaza | | S"#vae Yeam birior YGTO1150mh Shelf ey ro Bentiey i b =
| iy 30 x 3 (Porkad) e i e
w 585mm x 1800m setmgImm Giomm TV Pomts i L Afianta b kel [w)
Double Featyrd - Socket 1500mm <, NFed E
} . : - e o ROV FrL - Renioe 1 1 4
5 ||| Mot 25TV Pom & Socket V ||
52 " | Bedroom 3 /", 1800w FeL~ ‘Socket 300mm | 2
E g Gallery Direct Mustiy g Firaos Hial s Pl Bedroom 2 tron FEL e L &
H lory Diract Mustique Padsiow [ [ | 2 ooxs00n el s £
5 Coffee Table 2 seater idres % N Vgt ] e % 1608 o
8 S0l s e T b Carurat 1 ecke N El
¥ Worktep_ bl | [E 50mm x Craver d{ Qbscure Sotom =
Piease See Fireplace Detail: above WD e % Standard Single. 3 Standard Single. 180mm Sheif Loddor Pane. E
Siate Hearh and Siate Tied —— e Socket (ne USB) |7 -
. Wtk Paels Plesse Loauis L B8mm Hy [ 2
¢ Reinforcelp To 1100mm FFL Viadiod T 2% Apertures Py -
Unswitched Socket @282mm o i |
Hon ¥ Matiess g s
& b T Q"Q i % Z Cabin Beds asbre v -l i
> % TV Paint & Door Mai [uss =
® L k;-*% ierem Socket finc. USH), | i e
£ Y 6, Quinn PLaza @ tasomm ign |- £
€ LN e Gallery Direct Cockham 595mm x 1800mm M
- N Sidebaard Grey USB  Double Feature = s -l -
' | 4 bt | i S REGSIE ! cu|f] - 26 B i ' !
1 I[ [ J; [ cu UJ p 1
i = 13 0w = T 7! = "
o 00mm x 1500mm &60mm » 160mm 5]
RWP Window wr i RWP
JouapE rhoie Clear
1 ) i 1
g 156mm |6 1/87 12Zmm (4 1316"] 9Bmm [3 347] 96mm [3 3047 Bem [3 3047] 156mm {6 187 5
5 5378mm (177 13167] +1000men (37 5116°] 265tmm [5-0.3] 5209mem (105 38°] 5
£ = G &54mm 241 3] e 3 T
£ 400mm [1:3354] 157 160mm 145 450mm[1=5 114167 E
H | I— IS H

Sockets
@ Prestige Homeseeker 7
S| Smoke Alarm

2 C COAlarm
il

@®
=
=}
z

Shipton Way, Express Business Park,
Rushden, Northamptenshire, NN10 6GL.
(01933) 354000

sales@phplh.com
prestigehomeseeker.com

Copyright © Prestige Homeseeker

5]

&4 ¢ u Consumer Unit
Under Locker Light
Downlight

Batten Holder

G 2bed

Ceiling Rose

4 ELEVATION A A

Or. 28/0;

REVISION HISTORY

2/20 DL Original

DERBYN

Adran Cynllunio 12-03-21

DRAWING

All measurements in mm unless stated otherwise.

Scale:  Relative
X
Quote: QN 37583
Drawing: 56587 ]
g
Int. Serial::  J???? °
Signature:
Ext. Serial: 19 27 00?77
Date:
Class: SP1



Roof Trusses
Code!

D00714

DOO714 Mill
DO0715

DOOT15 Mill
DOOT16

|sincLe swTeHED
| SOHET

LiGHT SmTeH

| luewr swren
-U FULL CORD
FUSED SPUR
>
COGKER SIWITCH
DOWMLIGHT

WALL LiGHT

Quantiy:

s

153mml,‘

13140mm {431 1/47] - OVERALL LENGTH

7 7
12802mm [42]
7 e &
pa 12038mm - ROOF EXTRACT 7
Womm , 12338mm - W.C OUTLET £ 200
153mm 1830mm 108mm 5813mm 109mm 1298mm 109mm 1050mm)Bmmun 1pBmm 1608Bmm  153mm
o g s L R i e
2 4107mm - NON MECHANIGAL VENT & EXTRACT i
S676mm - ROOF EXTRAGT i
NOTE : WALL Ghulam - 602¢émm 1027mem - ROOF EXTRACT s
HEIGHT TO BE 1 ai i i 5§55
3 LOWEREDTO DOCRAPERTURE.  2xCOAT HOOKS >z =
g 2050mm FFL MF 128/C/4000 MF 1375/CI400 MF 1375/C/4000 MF 229/DC/2GS000 St ones T EEe o BATTEN 100mm O £ E E E
i, Y R 2 ; NI PIR  THUMB TURN LOGK P TAILS FOR ELECTRIC SHE &
= e T iy [N THROUGH FLOOR: g2y B
% B
o ~ > ~
1400 % 800
2xSmall 5 SHOWER 2683mm. E
i 2 & Ay wH KITCHEN & DINER
2 "lene Setaren » 267 s
LAATE ; °
V-GROGVE W 2
€ Jon = =3
£ o B
2 o 3 ~
= # : £
| E 5 g z
a1 g [E 4 PENDANT > 3 2
s | B2 =<mg | aTEaT: ¢ P ¢ =
1830mm x 2584; NS e & A E 2
T e <e | e 2IEE omdrin M * § g a
N e il iRine aele g =Y wrecmaree B =
e w | + w| & R 2 =
486mm . usal N ) [congie i
: by | & {Eeoie S|
2200mmi =
+ = ) BT WALl SecTion
; & — ; N
N 2xpenoanr B A
~ LIGHTS OVER B 300m: S 2081mm 30k L
Ry 1518mm A P Bhckpanal | SR
BAR & S " FLUE THROUGH
: ROOF oumy
2 | 2 Seater Hafrogate Sofa bt
. - s 2
DUy s £
3 & Ltk il DUy
g o " 3226mm x2968mm £ B START
| CARPET b i
2
B HALF SITE FINISHED
R P | L e
@ = &- & e St
g 5 1678mm 13 4 monm p AR .
s & 3 s £ 2
g p— i 2 =
S 2 Foe 8dmm g60mm w e
B w £ SKYLIGHT a2l g 8
g o E § L3 LOUNGE r 5 1 g g
o 3 s826mmx  E & -
= & % N | 3imm & " & 2 : &
£ @ LAMINATE & g & Raise PP BEDROOM 2 =]
H 4 £ AREA: 17.9m £ 1 I 7 3226mm x 2968mm
2 £ somwes £ E
200mm " COFFEE TABLE 5 & | ————— P g E(Dmm,
[ e & BT r: I S
o
3 S 5 g
5 FEATUREWALL| —  jowsrr 2y
o DOCR APERTURE (PAINTED) ooR APERTURE H
NN N 13 1a0mm x 2050mm - 1880mm x2050mm &
- ! THUMS TURNLOCK e THOME TURNLOGK  oe | 7]
g ¥ 1T EXTTAP [ c
& T e v e B ¥ = X, DoomAestves. 2000 SLIDING PATIO DOORS
E .E 5 B PoaRS™ kB TimiiBae 1850 SLIDING PATIO DOORS . .~ 1B60SLIDING PATIODOORS xree P e 2 ae, WITH GLAZING ABOVE
o) Bl L WITH GLAZING ABOVE - E WITH GLAZING ABOVE 200mm , LB £
STUD TO STEEL - 435mm APERTURE - 2010mm i} - APERTURE - 2010mm STUD TO STEEL - 435mm
; ; - £ omm 8omm 7, ¥ S s “ s
Vs i3 €0mm ., 6omm_,, - B0Mm eomm o, SrdmmJ, 60mm 6omm 7,
APERTURE - 1860mi i APERTURE - 18601
4mm . Ve m STEELTO STERL - A3 B 2 mm A013mm - DUMMY WALL STUD TO STUD 290mm - DUMMY WALL STUD TO STUD
“ " 5345mm - SKYLIGHT i
340mm - DUMM‘Y WALL,STUD TO STUD pe .y
pa 6845mm - SKYLIGHT 7
» Glulam - 602émm g
e 153mm 3226mm \’}ﬂsmm 5826mm ) |, 10Smm 3226mm " ’ 153mm.
¥ 3356mm - STUD TO STUD J: 8024mm - STUD TO STUD b 3358mm - STUD TO STUD ik
i 12740mm - STUD TO STUD 4
12802mm [42]
e v
ELECTRIC TALS soE MOE  [MEANSOFESSAE| o icior Schedule Model: Date Drawn:
PenaTLIGHT eecTrca noow
e S T T 2xASPIBAVSA 10° MONO PITCH ROOF
BATTEN LGHT EXTERNAL POWER Diner ASP1855VSA VAULTED CEILING THROUGHOUT Size: Metric: Imperial: A
T B e bl AR 2 x GLULAM REQUIRED - ) peret
TELEPWONEPONT| . EXTERMALLIGHT W.C/ Utiity TCG100215 B
EL NG Bedroom 1 ASP1855VSA V-GROOVE INTERNAL WALLS
s cr | BTG g;:u‘ﬂe 12 TC%'%?’?;: CANEXEL CLAD EXTERIOR Park: c
A REAR WALL HEIGHT TO BE 2050mm FFL
oaRmoN VASHNG VAHIE Ensuite 2 TCG100215 b
uorioue e 15mm SCALE REDUCER REQUIRED
ST TRVS To All Rads Except Hall Fmr Clslpman] & T
Thiss drawing and the information contained in i, is the property of Tingdene Homes Ltd. It
ExTRacToR AN ExreRL T ot b used, ransrmitied or reproduced, in whole or i part, without pror writen
T consent fram Tingaens Homes Lid. Copyright © F

DERBYN

Adran Cynilunio 12-03-2025

>

- p 180mm
) b3 153mm

212mm
3267mm
3267mm

/_J,_ 108mm
3694mm [12-1 387 - OVERALL WIDTH OF BOX A

-~

 p 108mm.

B650mm [21-9 3/47]

B6800mM [22°3 347

Support Drawings
Description | DWG No
W. Setting Out 210177_8
1210177_RP
:210177_EP
:210177_PS
Vaulted Walls izmw?_vw
120220 VL
;2|0177_RE
1210177_LA
1210177_HB
2101771
1210177_A
210177_BB
Bedside Cabs ' 210177_BC
\Window App. |210177_WA
Dormer Roof .210177_DR

Transport

Dimensions:
Note: Weights are
for Guidance ONLY

Roof Plan
Electric Plan
Plumbin Plan

2968mm

Vautt Lights
Roof Extract
L. Alcove
Hall Bench

Trusses

3769mm [12-4 387 - OVERALL WIDTH OF BOX B

Alcoves

- 153mm

Bed Bulkhead

AARomm, .

Height (m):
Width N/ (m):
Weight NIS (kg):
Width O/S (m):
Weight O/S (kg)
Band: F

4265
3.769
9565
3604
9034
Axles: 3

rTINGDENE'

Discover the difference

Tingdene Homes Limited.

Bradfield Road, Finedon Road Ind. Est., Wellingborough,

Northants, NN8 4HB
Tel: +44(0)1933 230100
www.tingdene.co.uk

Sales No: S.0. No:




= =

N I S .

Elevations Are For lllustrative Purposes Only

i

REAR ELEVATION

BEDROOM 2 END ELEVATION

= e || =
45
T ——&F L ff
| Tt
— i
FRONT ELEVATION BEDROOM 1 END ELEVATION
o, |BumESOE] . [REGmOTAS | o ekt MoE|NEANS Radiator Sehadule Model: Date Drawn: ’T}y:
PN e e — 10° MONO PITCH ROOF rﬂ NGDENE
o [ @ Smeen [ | oWt VAULTED CEILING THROUGHOUT Size: Metric: Imperial: A Discover the diference
-U"! e | o, B ézilb%L\?EMIE'ESFL:&E%V ALLS B Tingdene Homes Limited.
o iz = e Bradfield Road, Finedon Road Ind. Est., Wellingborough,
e R PR T CANEXEL CLAD EXTERIOR Park: c Northants, NN8 4HB
- ’ REAR WALL HEIGHT TO BE 2050mm FFL Tel: +44(0)1933 230100
[on oo e 15mm SCALE REDUCER REQUIRED B www.tingdene. co.uk
CD@ DOWNLIGHT. gb; e RADITOR Copyright Notice: Customer: E Scale: Sales No: S.0. No:
2 fERMas This drawang ard the infermation contained in it is the property of Tingdene Hormes Litd. It o o
@ WAL LiGHT & EXTRACTOR FAN EXTERNAL TA® ol ba Lsed, mmmﬁﬁrmﬁfﬁ:m ermpa':gml priorwitten E 1:75



















	Agenda
	4. MINUTES
	5.1 Application No C25/0503/14/DT Strade, 65 Cae Gwyn, Caernarfon, Gwynedd, LL55 1LL
	Plans

	5.2 Application No C25/0202/40/LL Land At Y Ffor, Pwllheli, LL53 6UT
	Plans


